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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Welcome to the

          3  Council's Committee on Housing and Buildings.  This

          4  Committee was convened to review and hear comments

          5  concerning Proposed Intro. No. 741- A, a local law

          6  to amend the New York City Charter and the

          7  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          8  relation to the electrical code and repealing

          9  sections 27-3004, 27-3011, 27-3012 and subchapter

         10  two of chapter three of title 27 of the

         11  Administrative Code.

         12                 The Committee last heard testimony on

         13  the original version of this bill on June 27, 2000.

         14  At that time the merits of updating the City's

         15  Electrical Code was presented.  Now, the

         16  Administration, in particular, wants to bring the

         17  City's Electrical Code into conformity with the 1999

         18  version  of the National Fire Protection

         19  Association's National Electrical Code, also known

         20  as NFPA 70, with modifications for the City

         21  considering the City's unique peculiarities,

         22  including building characteristics, density,

         23  topography and practicality.  Thus, Proposed Intro.

         24  No. 741-A sets in motion a two-tier approach to

         25  provide for the official adoption of the 1999
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          2  National Electrical Code as the minimum requirements

          3  for the design, installation, alterations or repair

          4  of electric wires and wiring apparatus and other

          5  appliances used or to be used for the transmission

          6  of electricity for electric light, heat, power,

          7  signaling, communication, alarm and data

          8  transmission in the City, with amendments to be done

          9  locally and passed by the City Council. These

         10  amendments will be referred to as the Electrical

         11  Code Technical Standards.

         12                 Interested parties are asked to

         13  testify on this matter, and hopefully, you have all

         14  signed the request to appear slips that are

         15  available at the Sergeant-At-Arms' desk.  And so we

         16  will begin with two gentlemen I see.

         17                 I assume you are from the

         18  Administration; is that correct, Sir?

         19                 There are copies being made for

         20  distribution for those of you who are here and

         21  Committee members, be alerted to the time.  The date

         22  is 10/26/01 and the time on this draft, not draft,

         23  this version is 10:16 a.m.

         24                 So, now, if you would identify

         25  yourself, Sir, and we will begin.
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          2                 Gentlemen, if you would identify

          3  yourselves?  So begin in whatever order you select.

          4                 MR. TOPPING:  Right.  Good morning,

          5  Chairman Spigner and members of the Housing and

          6  Buildings Committee.  My name is Mark Topping and I

          7  am Chief of Staff for the Department of Buildings.

          8  And with me is Marzio Penzi, Director of the Bureau

          9  of Electrical Control.  Thank you for the

         10  opportunity to speak this morning in support of

         11  Introduction 741-A.

         12                 Given that most of the components of

         13  this bill have been previously discussed, I want to

         14  focus my comments on how this proposed bill will

         15  support the City's effort to rebuild Lower Manhattan

         16  and remain competitive with neighboring

         17  jurisdictions in the wake of the tragic events of

         18  September 11th.

         19                 As you know, the Electrical Code of

         20  the City of New York has remained virtually

         21  unchanged since 1968.  As a consequence, it does not

         22  systematically recognized the significant

         23  advancements in technology, construction and

         24  electrical installation methods that have occurred

         25  since that date.  These advancements include systems
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          2  and methods such as low voltage wiring systems used

          3  in communication, alarm - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Excuse me, Mr.

          5  Topping, do you have a copy of your statement, it

          6  would be helpful to be distributed to the members

          7  who are here?

          8                 And you should know that at the table

          9  with me are Council Members Helen Marshall, soon to

         10  be Borough President of the Borough of Queens;

         11  Martin Malate- Divan from Brooklyn; Madeline

         12  Provenzano from the Bronx, and Michael Nelson from

         13  Brooklyn.

         14                 Ah, now it is easier.

         15                 MR. TOPPING:  I'm sorry, that should

         16  have been distributed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It's not your

         18  fault, you had, in fact, made it available, but it

         19  had not been distributed.  Do you want to start

         20  again from the top?

         21                 MR. TOPPING:  Start at the top?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes, sure.

         23                 MR. TOPPING:  I will just start with

         24  the second paragraph there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. TOPPING:  Given that most of the

          3  components of this bill have been previously

          4  discussed, I will - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Huh?  Second

          6  paragraph.  Yes, we had a meeting on this, my

          7  opening statement says, that we hope if you were

          8  here, we discussed this at length, but in my opening

          9  statement, the Committee has last heard testimony on

         10  the original version of this bill on June 7th in

         11  2000.  You have got to have a good memory, a good

         12  memory is a requirement.  Okay.

         13                 MR. TOPPING:  A little time ago, but

         14  previously discussed nonetheless.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  A long time

         16  ago.

         17                 MR. TOPPING:  I want to focus my

         18  comments on how this proposed bill will support the

         19  City's effort to rebuild Lower Manhattan and remain

         20  competitive with neighboring jurisdictions in the

         21  wake of the tragic events of September 11th.

         22                 As you know, the Electrical Code of

         23  the City of New York has remained virtually

         24  unchanged since 1968.  As a consequence, it does not

         25  systematically recognize the significant
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          2  advancements in technology, construction and

          3  electrical installation methods that have occurred

          4  since that date.  These advancements include systems

          5  and methods such as low voltage wiring systems used

          6  in communication, alarm and data transmission

          7  systems; fiber optics, Uninterrupted Power Supply

          8  systems; digital control systems; solar cells; and

          9  fuel cell technologies, to name just a few.

         10                 Because these are prevalent

         11  throughout the industry, the industry is required to

         12  regularly obtain permission from the Electrical

         13  Advisory Board before utilizing technologies and

         14  methods that can substantially reduce the time and

         15  cost involved in installation of electrical systems

         16  required by today's modern buildings.

         17                 Although this Board, consisting of

         18  expert volunteers from the industry, regularly meets

         19  to review and approve these new standards, it cannot

         20  adequately fill the ever- widening technical gap

         21  between the outdated code and the evolving

         22  requirements of the electrical industry.  As a

         23  result, building owners and electricians using new

         24  technologies are often forced to over- design and/or

         25  inflate costs associated with these types of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  installations.

          3                 The proposed new code will utilize

          4  the National Electrical Code technical standards

          5  established by the National Fire Protection

          6  Association in 1999.  The major advantage of this

          7  modern standard is the "As of Right" adoption of

          8  technologies, materials and methods that are

          9  recognized nationally and in neighboring

         10  jurisdictions.  The need for approximately 90

         11  percent of the equipment and material submissions to

         12  the Board and 60 percent of the special permission

         13  submissions will be eliminated by adoption of this

         14  new code.

         15                 However, this does not mean that the

         16  new Code fails to recognize the special needs and

         17  requirements of New York City's high- density

         18  environment.  Built into Intro. 741- A is a

         19  methodology for amending the code prior to adoption

         20  and an institutionalized mechanism for responding to

         21  the rapid changes occurring throughout the industry

         22  in the future.  These provisions ensure that the

         23  safety, economic, and labor considerations unique to

         24  New York City can be adequately incorporated into

         25  these technical standards through a proposed
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          2  committee and amendment process.

          3                 Besides reducing the time and cost

          4  associated with the adoption of these new

          5  technologies, the new code, as proposed, also

          6  substantially reduces the fees required for filing

          7  jobs through the $5,000 fee cap.  For example, the

          8  electrical filing fees associated with the

          9  construction, the recent construction for a building

         10  for a Fortune 500 company with $160,000 in filing

         11  fees would have been reduced to $40,000, a 75

         12  percent savings.  If this cap had been in effect

         13  during Fiscal 2001 approximately 50 percent would

         14  have been saved by the industry on jobs with fees

         15  over $5,000.  These jobs are typical of the type

         16  that will be required to rebuild and redevelop Lower

         17  Manhattan in years to come.

         18                 Aside from Department fees, the new

         19  code will reduce the costs associated with the

         20  installation and maintenance because of its more

         21  flexible design requirements that utilize new

         22  technologies and materials.  While it is difficult

         23  to quantify these savings across the broad range of

         24  work that will be done, they will undoubtedly be a

         25  significant part of reducing construction cost
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          2  throughout the City.

          3                 New York needs a foundation upon

          4  which it and the Electrical Industry can expedite

          5  its rebuilding process, reduce the cost of

          6  construction, and compete effectively with

          7  neighboring jurisdictions that presently support

          8  modern building methods and advanced technology.  By

          9  referencing the 1999 NEC code and providing a

         10  vehicle for incorporating the input of the

         11  electrical industry, Intro. 741- A accomplishes this

         12  while maintaining  the safety standards unique to

         13  New York.  I strongly urge you to enact all of its

         14  provisions.

         15                 I will be happy to answer any

         16  questions you may have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Identify

         18  yourself, do you have any added comments?

         19                 MR. PENZI:  Not at this moment.  My

         20  name is Marzio Penzi.  I'm the Director  of the

         21  Bureau of Electrical Control, and I would be happy

         22  to answer any questions you may have.

         23                 MR. TOPPING:  He is identified there

         24  in the first paragraph.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right,
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          2  then, okay, Mr. Marzio Penzi.

          3                 MR. PENZI:  Marzio.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  P- E- N- Z- I?

          5                 MR. PENZI:  That is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Ponzi?

          7                 MR. PENZI:  Penzi.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Penzi, okay.

          9  So your version of 741- A is like motherhood,

         10  everyone should be happy with it and we could all

         11  claim it is the right thing to do and move onto

         12  other issues, but that is not what this Committee

         13  has found.  That there is opposition from the

         14  industry on one hand and the labor union on the

         15  other.  So how do you, are you aware of some of

         16  their concerns?

         17                 MR. TOPPING:  I'm aware of their

         18  concerns, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Can you address

         20  some of their concerns?

         21                 MR. TOPPING:  I think the concerns

         22  arise largely from the work that was done in

         23  preparation for 741 to devise amendments to that

         24  code which incorporates the 1999 NEC Code.  I think

         25  that we can build off of that work, there is no
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          2  question that we can build off that work.

          3                 I think that the 1999 Code

          4  incorporates a lot of the technology and

          5  advancements that have occurred subsequent to the

          6  1990 Code.  I think that the concerns that they

          7  raise with regard to amendments that were developed

          8  by the Committee in preparation for 741 can be

          9  effectively utilized, and that work can help us

         10  prepare the amendments for the 1990 Code in a way

         11  that is really prepares us to move forward so that

         12  we're up- to- date with the code as much as

         13  possible.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Does anything

         15  in this 741- A jeopardize employment status, or

         16  workforce composition, or speaks specifically to

         17  workforce composition, minimum requirements in terms

         18  of workers, employees, electricians?

         19                 MR. TOPPING:  The 741- A does, there

         20  are some administrative provisions that address the

         21  years of experience and credits for experience as a

         22  working electrician.  We feel that these more

         23  accurately reflect the reality in the industry.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Is this a point

         25  of contention based on your experience over the 10,
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          2  11 years that were involved. I'm certain that some

          3  of those comparables.  Is that a point of

          4  contention?

          5                 MR. TOPPING:  I'm not aware of any

          6  points of contention, maybe Marzio can elaborate on

          7  those.

          8                 MR. PENZI:  No, that is not an area

          9  that is a point of contention.  The prior

         10  submission, the technical standards that were agreed

         11  upon as a result of various committee meetings

         12  relating to the technical standards of the prior

         13  version of 741, many of the amendments that were

         14  resolved and that were submitted in that document,

         15  the opposition is that the same considerations and

         16  the same process will be followed during the process

         17  that we're proposing in this new bill, in this new

         18  version of 741- A.  The same industry members, the

         19  unions will be represented in the amendment process,

         20  they will have the opportunity, they will be very

         21  much a part of that process, and ultimately, the

         22  amendments will be required to come before the

         23  Council for, as a local law, for passage or the bill

         24  will not take effect, or the legislation will not

         25  take effect.
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          2                 We feel that they're adequate

          3  safeguards and for all interested parties to be

          4  represented through this process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Any member of

          6  the Committee with a question?  Council Member

          7  Marshall, excuse me, excuse me, I'm sorry, Council

          8  Member Nelson followed by Council Member Marshall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, thank

         10  you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council member,

         12  the Minority Leader of the Republicans that is,

         13  Ognibene.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  The need for

         15  approximately 90 percent of the equipment and

         16  materials submissions to the Board and 60 percent of

         17  the special submission will be eliminated by

         18  adoption of this code.  But what percent do you

         19  know, approximately, were granted before were

         20  denied, is there a way to figure it out?

         21                 MR. TOPPING:  The issue that that is

         22  trying to address is that where there needs to be an

         23  installation that requires the new technology, a

         24  submission to the Advisory Board is required.  So

         25  the Advisory Board meets every three weeks to review
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          2  these submissions, there is an application process,

          3  there is an unnecessary delay there in reviewing

          4  those submissions.  And the 741, with the adoption

          5  of the "As of Right" standard allows electricians to

          6  use accepted, nationally accepted and recognized

          7  technologies "As of Right" there.   So it's not so

          8  much of an issue that these submissions are

          9  rejected, it's more of an issue the delay that is

         10  caused by the submissions.

         11                 I don't know if you have anything to

         12  add or to correct.

         13                 MR. PENZI:  That is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Presumably

         15  some are denied because of safety questions?

         16                 MR. TOPPING:  Oh, definitely.

         17                 MR. PENZI:  Of course, of course,

         18  they all go under a technical review.  But the point

         19  being that is not so much the issue as much as the

         20  need for the industry to utilize its resources, to

         21  come before the Board in order to use these

         22  technologies.  By referencing the new, the 1999 NEC,

         23  many of these technologies as long as they're rated,

         24  the UL rated and there is varying rated authorities,

         25  they will be able to use them as long as they have
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          2  them listing a rating.  So that will be eliminated

          3  that process which shortens the period of time that

          4  someone could, that the industry could use this

          5  equipment.

          6                 MR. TOPPING:  And I just want to

          7  emphasize as well, it's not that we're lessening our

          8  standards for safety with regard to these.  Through

          9  the adoption process and the recommendations through

         10  this Committee for the adoption of the code will

         11  carve out or make suggestions with regard to where

         12  continuing Advisory Board review needs to take place

         13  because of the unique requirements to New York City.

         14    So I just want to emphasize that we're not

         15  compromising safety in any manner through this "As

         16  of Right" process.

         17                 MR. PENZI:  Yes, the point is also

         18  that the reason that they need to come before the

         19  Advisory Board is because the existing code does not

         20  address these technologies, it's outdated, and that

         21  is why they have to, the only effective way of

         22  ensuring the safety feature of these codes, of this

         23  material and equipment is by having a review of that

         24  nature.  But if there are "As of Right" standards

         25  that address this, and at this alternate process
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          2  would ensure that at the same time expedite the

          3  process.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So it would

          5  upgraded safety in a way, and be cost- effective in

          6  that manner, as well, besides?

          7                 MR. PENZI:  Right, exactly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And are there

          9  any estimates approximately on the drawing board

         10  about how much money this is expected to save?  I

         11  understand the surrounding areas, as well, which of

         12  course is extremely significant in this case, we do

         13  not want people moving out of the City.  But has

         14  there been any amount that has become derived?

         15                 MR. TOPPING:  It's difficult to

         16  really give you an accurate number on how much money

         17  would be saved just because it is a broad range of

         18  work and it is hard to.  There are a number of

         19  different configurations that would be possible

         20  under this, whether you utilize those configurations

         21  for, because they're available or make other

         22  decisions for economic reasons or other reasons,

         23  it's really difficult to come up with an accurate

         24  figure.  But we think it will provide some

         25  significant savings, so.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you

          3  very much.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member

          5  Marshall.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Good

          7  morning.

          8                 MR. TOPPING:  Good morning.

          9                 MR. PENZI:  Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  First of

         11  all, anything that we can do that is safe to speed

         12  up the process, certainly we want to encourage.  But

         13  we do not want to do it at the cost of safety.  Now

         14  when you say, "As of Right,"  now to remove

         15  approximately 90 percent of the equipment and

         16  material submissions to the Board sounds like a

         17  large number.  I understand that the union and some

         18  other experts have been really working on improving

         19  this bill for a nine- year period, and that mostly

         20  everything that they have worked on and tried and

         21  tested is now being moved out of the picture.

         22  You're giving them an opening, a window here, to

         23  work on those things, but in the meantime, this bill

         24  is going to take effect, if my notes here are

         25  correct, within 30 days after, 60 days after we pass
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          2  is.  The total bill will take, at least Section 23

          3  of it will take effect 60 days after we pass this

          4  bill.  Am I correct, Counsel?  The entire, the rest

          5  of the bill will take place January the 1st, 2003,

          6  which is a year from now.

          7                 I'm concerned when I see "As of

          8  Right."  "As of Right" is a concern to me, maybe

          9  it's the wrong parallel, but I remember when we did

         10  self- certification, we did that also to speed up

         11  construction and to allow projects to move ahead,

         12  but we have found a lot of loopholes.  You, the

         13  Building Department, are lousy as far as following

         14  up, and you're only driven by complaint, there is no

         15  cyclical examination of the work.  And if you're

         16  going to do this, I just need more assurances, my

         17  district right now in Queens has construction going

         18  on all over the place, self- certification is

         19  rampant and many violations have been found.  I need

         20  to know that what you're doing is going to be safe

         21  for the residents of this City.

         22                 MR. TOPPING:  A couple of points I

         23  want to make to that, is that, this 90 percent is

         24  really a maximum figure, because the Committee

         25  process, which is a 10- month process whereby a
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          2  Committee with representatives from industry and

          3  labor provide input and they're going to be building

          4  off of that work that was done for nine years to

          5  provide what are the amendments and restrictions

          6  that need to be amended to the 1999 Code.  So we're

          7  building off of that work that was done for those

          8  nine years.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You are

         10  building, how are you building off of it, would you

         11  please just elaborate a little bit more on that?

         12                 MR. TOPPING:  Well a lot of the

         13  unique provisions of the New York City high- density

         14  environment, those things were discussed.  The 1990

         15  Code was looked at as to where, areas where they

         16  needed to change things or make amendments to ensure

         17  the safety in that environment.  And those areas are

         18  largely going to remain the same, those areas are

         19  not substantially going to be different.

         20                 However, the 1999 Code does update

         21  for new technologies, for technologies that have

         22  been further developed since 1990, and so we feel

         23  like, so we feel that in 1999 standards give us the

         24  advantage of addressing those new technologies as

         25  they have developed since 1990, but also we can
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          2  build off of through that 10- month process of

          3  review by the Committee to identify areas where we

          4  need to restrict or constrict the "As of Right"

          5  standards. For example, so if this Committee decides

          6  that they want certain portions of the "As of Right"

          7  standards not to apply and they need to go through

          8  the Advisory Board for submission, then those things

          9  can be included.

         10                 So if, for example, just to take one

         11  example of a developing technology, fuel cell

         12  technology, if there is a decision made that fuel

         13  cell technology as it is recognized nationally

         14  should not be applied in New York City because of

         15  whatever specific reasons that are unique to New

         16  York City, then those types of technologies would

         17  have to go through the Advisory Board.  And maybe

         18  the material and equipment submissions that would be

         19  90 percent at the maximum, it might be 80 percent or

         20  something, I'm just throwing out ideas in terms of

         21  the number of submissions.  But it's that type of

         22  process to ensure that we build off of the work that

         23  is done and we ensure the safety.

         24                 MR. PENZI:  May I also add that the

         25   "As of Right" concept that you're referring to,
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          2  actually does enhance safety. And what it does, is

          3  it ensures that there is a continuity in

          4  completeness in the way a code is implemented.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  The "As of

          6  Right" process does that?

          7                 MR. PENZI:  Yes, it does.  What we

          8  mean by "As of Right,"  what we mean by what we're

          9  saying there - -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I know what

         11   "As of Right" means.

         12                 MR. PENZI:  No, I understand that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:   Are you

         14  giving me a different meaning?  "As of Right" means

         15  that they can do it, because - -

         16                 MR. PENZI:  Based on what the code

         17  says.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, but

         19  without supervision.

         20                 MR. PENZI:  In comparison to, no, no,

         21  no, in comparison to what exists now.  You see,

         22  right now, there are not any guidelines or standards

         23  for many of the technologies that we're talking

         24  about.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I
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          2  understand that.

          3                 MR. PENZI:  The new code, the new

          4  provisions will establish a standards, technical

          5  standards and give the industry a framework, a very

          6  specific framework to follow so that they can do

          7  safe installations.

          8                 Right now in order to do that they

          9  have to go through an Advisory Board to obtain

         10  permission.  That is time consuming and it is also

         11  on, the permission is based on a case- by case

         12  assessment.  So any decision that the Advisory Board

         13  makes in that regard is specific to that

         14  installation.  The industry does not benefit, safety

         15  does not benefit from that as much as it would if

         16  there was a standardized process, a code, that

         17  addresses exactly how to do these installations.

         18  That is the "As of Right" that we're referring to

         19  here.

         20                 And in electrical every installation

         21  is inspected, is required, there is no self-

         22  certification in this industry.  So this very much

         23  enhances the safety aspect that you're concerned

         24  about.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Council
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          2  member?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  No, just

          4  one more question.  The legislation that we're doing

          5  is about to make a major change in the electrical

          6  code.  It would seem to me that we would gather all

          7  the information and have it in the bill now, instead

          8  of passing this bill so quickly without the

          9  information that has been gathered.  You're leaving

         10  room for input, it seems to me that legislatively we

         11  should be putting this bill forward with that input.

         12                 MR. TOPPING:  I think that what this

         13  does is forces us to do that consideration process

         14  and to make sure that we're getting that input from

         15  all of the represented parties and constituents, and

         16  make sure that we're adopting the most up- to- date

         17  code with the amendments that need to be specific to

         18  New York. There is a 10- month period where we're

         19  reviewing the work that was done under 741 and we're

         20  taking that input and putting it before the Council

         21  where there is an additional review and you can get

         22  additional information.

         23                 If at the end of the day you're not

         24  satisfied with how that review process went, the

         25  conclusions of that process, it does not, this bill
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          2  does not commit us to adopting that.  But what it

          3  does do, is it forces us to review that, and in a

          4  substantial level bring our code up- to- date and

          5  move forward.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Council

          7  Member Ognibene.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  All right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. And I'm not as smart as the rest of my

         11  colleagues on the City Council, and I'm just kind of

         12  curious because I have read the bill, I have read

         13  your testimony, certainly, although it happened

         14  before September 11th, it's probably even more

         15  urgent now.  We want to rebuild the City, we have

         16  lost tens of thousands of jobs, and here what, it

         17  seems that what you're proposing, I think, is that

         18  we're trying to take a law that allowed certain

         19  things to be done and allowed certain things not to

         20  be done because they came afterwards and there was

         21  advanced technology.  And what we're trying to do,

         22  is bring this advanced technology into our code and

         23  making it part of our code so that people when they

         24  want to use this advanced technology they do not

         25  have to go through this rigorous, tortuous process
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          2  in order to get this electrical work done, that is

          3  what it seems to me.

          4                 And so we're trying to reduce cost,

          5  because if you make them part of the code they do

          6  not have to go through this costly process.  They

          7  are, obviously, beneficial because some of the

          8  things that you have mentioned here, and I don't

          9  know what the Uninterrupted Power Supply, digital

         10  control systems, solar cells, these are used, I

         11  think, all over the United States; aren't they?

         12                 MR. TOPPING:  Right, that is correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  They have

         14  been tested, the underwriter laboratories approved,

         15  they're used in other parts of this country where

         16  construction is just booming.  People have wonderful

         17  jobs, whether it is in Arizona, Los Vegas, you name

         18  it, in Nevada.  So these things obviously do several

         19  things.

         20                 They're clearly safe because they're

         21  used throughout this country.  Clearly, they're

         22  beneficial to the consumers as well as to the

         23  business people that install them.  Clearly, they

         24  create jobs for the individuals that do this type of

         25  installation, and these individuals are what,
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          2  electricians.  You're not abolishing the job of

          3  electrician; are you?  You're probably giving

          4  electricians more work here; aren't you?

          5                 And you're reducing cost and you're

          6  making it safer and bringing us into the 21st

          7  Century.  Maybe you can just do for me, because I

          8  said I'm not as smart, why, play devil's advocate,

          9  why would anybody object to helping rebuild New York

         10  City and bringing new technology into our code, why

         11  do you think?  Without putting yourself on the spot.

         12                 MR. TOPPING:  You know, I have to

         13  concur with your statements with regard to why it

         14  makes sense for us to update our code.  I have not

         15  heard anybody make a compelling argument why it does

         16  not make sense to update our code.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Well it may

         18  be a compelling argument because we're not voting

         19  yesterday, probably.

         20                 MR. TOPPING:  Well, I - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Somebody

         22  must have said something that disturbed the peace

         23  and quiet of this City Council, and we're not moving

         24  ahead with something I think is the absolute right

         25  thing to do, especially after September 11th.  But
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          2  why would that be?  Are there people out there maybe

          3  that are misinformed?

          4                 MR. TOPPING:  I do not know.  I think

          5  that there might be some apprehension with regard to

          6  we're moving forward with a bill that mandates us to

          7  do the amendment process, and there is no defined

          8  result at the end of that amendment process.  There

          9  is no defined result because they do not know what

         10  is going to come out at the end of that day.  At the

         11  end of the day, when these amendments are submitted,

         12  it's not guaranteed that certain provisions will be

         13  in that.

         14                 However, - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Wouldn't

         16  those people have input in that amendment process?

         17  You're certain that this is going to be a very open

         18  amendment process, so those who have concerns are

         19  going to be able to voice those concerns in a

         20  reasonable fashion.

         21                 MR. TOPPING:  That is absolutely

         22  correct.  And I think what is important about this

         23  bill is that it provides a structure for getting

         24  that input, and at the end of the day, if everybody

         25  is not satisfied with those amendments or with the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  structure of the new code, it does not need to be

          3  adopted.  We're no worse off by adopting this bill

          4  and this code, this new code, than we are if we do

          5  not move forward.  So it's all, it's almost all up

          6  side there.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  When

          8  similar legislation like this is either passed or

          9  updated in other jurisdictions throughout the United

         10  States, are you aware if there were some, and

         11  clearly and they should be, it's an adversarial

         12  pluralistic society, people who came forward and

         13  said, look, we have some objections because, and do

         14  you know if they voiced their objections and whether

         15  those objections or concerns were sustained after

         16  the legislation was passed, or whether they were

         17  ameliorated?

         18                 In other words, there may be some

         19  fears out there, and we can say, well, talk to your

         20  brethren, talk to the people who had objections to

         21  it when it passed in Nevada, California, or

         22  Colorado, and you will see that they had the same

         23  objections that you did, but after the process was

         24  done, those objections were ameliorated.

         25                 MR. TOPPING:  I cannot speak to
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          2  specific objections in other jurisdictions, perhaps

          3  Marzio can, but I can say that I know that in other

          4  jurisdictions the industry and labor is appreciative

          5  that they have an up- to- date code that they can

          6  get training for, that incorporates the new

          7  technologies that is being demanded of them, and I

          8  think that that is definitely  appreciated at the

          9  end of the day.

         10                 In terms of those specific

         11  objections, I do not know if - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council member,

         13  I would hope that you would stick around, because

         14  listed to testify points of views that will be

         15  expressed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  I always

         17  stick around.  I just have one just quick question.

         18  Are some of these newer systems being used today in

         19  the City of New York, because they went through some

         20  lengthy, you know?

         21                 MR. PENZI:  Yes, variance process.

         22                 MR. TOPPING:  Yes, they are.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  And are

         24  they installed by other than people who are licensed

         25  to do this?
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          2                 MR. PENZI:  No, everything is done by

          3  licensed individuals.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Everything

          5  is done by licensed.

          6                 MR. PENZI:  The existing code, the

          7  process does not prevent new technology from being

          8  introduced to the City.  That is why you have, it

          9  exists in this jurisdiction, but it has to go

         10  through this process because it is outdated.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Right.

         12                 MR. PENZI:  And what this code will

         13  do, is bring it up- to- date and eliminate the

         14  lengthy process.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Right.

         16  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         18  you, Mr. Toppings and Mr. Penzi.  We have no more

         19  questions from the Council members, if so, you can

         20  move onto other concerns of the day.

         21                 MR. TOPPING:  Thank you for your

         22  time.

         23                 MR. PENZI:  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So we now want

         25  to hear from Mr. McElroen Vincent or is that Vincent
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          2  McElroen, the Local 3, IBEW.  Mr. McElroen.

          3                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  If you would

          5  identify yourself for the record, please, we will be

          6  pleased to hear your comments?

          7                 MR. MCELROEN:  My name is Vincent

          8  McElroen.  I'm a business representative of Local

          9  Union #3 of the International Brotherhood of

         10  Electrical Workers.  I'm here representing our

         11  business manager, Thomas - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Do you have a

         13  copy of this statement?

         14                 MR. MCELROEN:  No, I just wrote it

         15  out as I was sitting in the back.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.

         17                 MR. MCELROEN:  I will gladly make a

         18  copy of it and give it to you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 But I'm here representing the 35,000

         20  members of Local Union #3, IBEW, 15,000 of which are

         21  employed in the electrical construction,

         22  maintenance, installation and repair sectors of the

         23  Electrical Industry in the City of New York.  The

         24  officers, the staff have discussed the proposed

         25  changes to the New York City Electrical Code that
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          2  are proposed in this bill at great length.  They are

          3  unanimous in their opposition to enacting this

          4  proposed legislation.

          5                 This bill was not the bill that was

          6  before the Council in June of 2000, which you had

          7  indicated earlier that there was great discussion

          8  on.  This is a different bill.  We do not believe

          9  that this bill is in the best interest of the public

         10  nor is it in the best interest of those thousands

         11  men and women employed within the industry.  We

         12  believe the work of the 20 panel committee that

         13  toiled to amend the New York City Code and merged

         14  the best elements of the NEC are a better way to

         15  achieve the objective expressed in this bill.

         16                 The amendments are already done, they

         17  could be passed rather than passing this bill that

         18  is presently before the Council.  The work of those

         19  panels, which spans nearly 11 years and were

         20  spearheaded by the Buildings Department ought not be

         21  rejected under the guise of expediency during this

         22  time of crisis in our City.  The panels have done

         23  the work and their work ought to be adopted.  Slow

         24  and steady as the tortoise taught the hare, ensures

         25  success.
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          2                 We are confident much additional

          3  assistance must be given to the Buildings Department

          4  for them to do their work efficiently and

          5  professionally.  Just this week we, who are involved

          6  in the building and construction industry have

          7  witnessed the failure of the safety system that is

          8  designed to protect the public.  Five workers were

          9  killed two days ago in the collapse of a scaffold,

         10  and they were killed due to an unscrupulous employer

         11  who chose to circumvent the protective system to his

         12  or her's company's economic gain.

         13                 We in the electrical industry are

         14  concerned about the safety of workers and of the

         15  general public as it pertains to the electrical

         16  installations and use here in the City of New York.

         17  We believe the number of reported shocks, injuries,

         18  death and loss of property directly related to

         19  electrical system failures is considerably higher

         20  than what is reported.  We believe most cases go

         21  unreported.

         22                 This attempt at an accelerated

         23  adoption of a bill, which has not been properly

         24  vented is a mistake.  All elements of the industry,

         25  employers, workers, the New York City Building
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          2  Department, architects, utility companies, designers

          3  and real estate interests were involved in this 11-

          4  year period to establish an amended New York City

          5  Electrical Code, discarding their work, their hard

          6  work and the time consuming work that they were

          7  involved in over this 11 years is a big mistake.

          8                 The bill, in effect, does just that.

          9  Although it makes a provision for amendments, it

         10  basically is tossing in a circular file all of the

         11  work of the past 11 years of the Electrical Industry

         12  in order to make a good faith effort to bring the

         13  code up to speed in order to address the concern

         14  that Mr. Ognibene expressed earlier so that the

         15  industry can respond quickly.  But certainly the way

         16  in which the system is presently designed as was

         17  proven by those who spoke before me, the process is

         18  in place in order to have these new technologies be

         19  introduced into the City of New York and to be

         20  installed and utilized.  But what it does is that it

         21  provides for the City of New York to have direct

         22  input into what will or will not be approved here in

         23  the City of New York.  It does not farm out that

         24  responsibility to the National Electrical Code and

         25  those who put the National Electrical Code together.
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          2                 So throughout the history of the

          3  Electrical Industry the City of New York could have

          4  adopted the National Electrical Code any time.  I

          5  know Local Union #3 has been representing workers in

          6  the Electrical Industry since 1891 in the City, and

          7  we have not adopted the National Electrical Code

          8  yet, here in the City of New York.  Why it is so

          9  important to do so in this hurriedly manner is

         10  beyond what we understand.

         11                 The safety is very important.  We

         12  understand that everybody is interested in the

         13  safety, but you know, what used to go back over the

         14  last couple of years in areas, we had the Happy Land

         15  fire up in the Bronx, if you remember that, you

         16  know.  We had buildings collapse in Brooklyn, I

         17  think it was a year or two, if we remember that,

         18  unscrupulous employers.  We had the building

         19  collapse just two days ago where the scaffold

         20  collapsed two days ago up here in Grammercy Park.

         21  We had the fire in McCauley Hawkins' Apartment House

         22  up here in Manhattan on the West Side, if you

         23  recall.  So many different areas where in theory the

         24  safety precautions are in place, but those who are

         25  responsible in order to ensure that they're being
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          2  lived up to are not, perhaps being properly funded

          3  or properly - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I do not know

          5  how you guarantee against unscrupulous greed or

          6  avarice nature of an individual.  I mean, I just

          7  don't know how we do that.  You can have the best

          8  law in place in the world, but the scaffold, just a

          9  preliminary information that I have show that the

         10  scaffold that was erected was done illegally without

         11  a permit from the Department of Buildings.  I don't

         12  know how you go, probably as we speak there are

         13  people doing things that are clearly against the

         14  law, and as a result people will be hurt and killed.

         15    But I don't know how we stop this other than

         16  capital punishment, breech infringement when caught,

         17  and still they will do it.

         18                 MR. MCELROEN:  Mr. Chairman, I agree

         19  with that, but I believe that the bill that is

         20  presently before the Council opens the flood gates

         21  for unscrupulous employers to do it without any

         22  checks or balances, essentially.  It makes it a bad

         23  situation worse, not a bad situation better.

         24                 And we would hope that the adoption

         25  of the original amendments that were worked on for
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          2  11 years is the way in which the Council ought to go

          3  in order to make a bad situation better.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I'm told that

          6  under 741- A there is an opportunity to incorporate

          7  whatever amendments or points or rules that you

          8  would want to have that with a product of continued

          9  effort could be adopted and implemented under 741-

         10  A. There is, it would take the same route, they

         11  would come to the Council and the Council would

         12  either accept it or reject it under the legislative

         13  process.

         14                 MR. MCELROEN:  Perhaps where I'm

         15  confused, Mr. Chairman, is that those amendments

         16  that would come before the Council as the result of

         17  the passage of this bill, are already before the

         18  Council in another form.  But for some reason the

         19  Administration chooses to reject that form and seeks

         20  to implement this form, which is a pig in a poke.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I want the

         22  Counsel to the Committee, Tezah Nasser, ask you a

         23  couple of questions for clarification, please?

         24                 Identify yourself?

         25                 MS. NASSER:  All right, Tezah Nasser,
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          2  Counsel to the Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          3  Just for clarification, you said that the amendments

          4  are already done.  Amendments to which version of

          5  the National Electrical Code?

          6                 MR. MCELROEN:  I believe it was the

          7  original 741 where the work, there was 20 panels

          8  that worked for nine years or ten years in order to

          9  amend the National Code and the New York City Code

         10  so that we took the best elements of both documents

         11  and implemented them here in the City of New York.

         12                 So those amendments are with the

         13  Department of Buildings, that I know for a fact.

         14                 MS. NASSER:  You did not answer the

         15  question still. I mean it is our understanding that

         16  it is the 1990 version, is that what your

         17  understanding is?

         18                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes, it is.

         19                 MS. NASSER:  So the 1990 version.

         20  And then how long do you think it would take to

         21  amend the 1999 version, which is the current version

         22  of the Electrical Code that is out there?

         23                 MR. MCELROEN:  I believe - -

         24                 MS. NASSER:  How long would think

         25  that based on --
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          2                 MR. MCELROEN:  I believe that most of

          3  the concerns have already been addressed during that

          4  period of time with the amendments of the 1990,

          5  because in addition to that what has gone on is

          6  exactly what was explained earlier by the

          7  Administration, which is that there has been

          8  hearings and adjudication in order to determine

          9  whether or not certain technologies ought to be

         10  installed here in the City of New York, and the

         11  guidelines that were acceptable to the City of New

         12  York.  So they have already been developed in order

         13  to implement.

         14                 MS. NASSER:  So roughly if you had to

         15  put a time frame on it, how long do you think it

         16  would take to use the data from 1990 to update the

         17  1999 Code?  So you think it would take like less

         18  than a month, two months for people to, you know,

         19  sort of go back in time, see what was happening,

         20  what other changes?  Like since 1999, just for

         21  clarification for the Council, the National

         22  Electrical Code comes out every three years, so

         23  1990, is the version that was worked on by this

         24  group, 1993 another version has come out, 1996 a

         25  later version came out, and now we're at 1999.  So
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          2  the question is, how long would it take to sort of

          3  use the data from 1990, obviously there might have

          4  been some other intervening changes and then sort of

          5  take 1999 and bring it up to speed, roughly?

          6                 MR. MCELROEN:  I think between three

          7  and six months.

          8                 MS. NASSER:  Three to six months,

          9  which at this point in time, I believe we're giving

         10  the Administration to roughly September 30th, which

         11  is more than three or six months to try to figure

         12  that out.

         13                 MR. MCELROEN:  September, you lost

         14  me.

         15                 MS. NASSER:  In the current bill this

         16  version of Intro. No. 741- A the Administration is

         17  given to present before the Council a subsequent

         18  version with the amendments, the changes that you're

         19  referring to, to modify, to like sort of conform it

         20  for New York City, to modify the 1999 version.

         21                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes.

         22                 MS. NASSER:  So they're giving

         23  themselves to September 30th, roughly, on or before

         24  of next year, of 2002. Right?  Yes.

         25                 MR. MCELROEN:  What I don't
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          2  understand is why it cannot be addressed now, what

          3  is the expediency, what is the expediency that it

          4  has to be done now this way in this manner?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well there have

          6  been varying views as to why it cannot be done.

          7  Some of them that, the copyrights and stuff or?

          8                 MR. MCELROEN:  Everybody is aware of

          9  the copyrights. Yes, there is the copyrights.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  There are some

         11  copyright issues.

         12                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes, but that is why

         13  you need the three to six months, it doesn't change

         14  anything.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well maybe we

         16  need to get the Administration back on after you

         17  have completed to respond to some of your - -

         18                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, it

         19  doesn't change anything, because most of those

         20  changes have already taken place here in the City of

         21  New York through the other process, which permits

         22  the introduction of new technologies into the

         23  Electrical Industry here in the City of New York.

         24  So that having already been done, those already

         25  exist, those changes, essentially.  And it is
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          2  already being installed here in the City.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, any

          4  member of the Committee has a question?  Mr.

          5  Ognibene.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Thank you

          7  for testifying, Sir.  I just want to go over some of

          8  your testimony.  Clearly, although you alluded to

          9  that scaffolding failure and the unfortunate

         10  circumstances, it's not the implication of your

         11  testimony that the intention of this bill was to

         12  reduce safety in the City of New York.  You

         13  testified it may result from it, clearly, it's not

         14  the intention of the bill to lessen safety.

         15                 MR. MCELROEN:  I do not know the

         16  intention of the bill.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  But it is

         18  not to lessen safety, or would you say it is to

         19  lessen safety?

         20                 MR. MCELROEN:  That is your opinion,

         21  Mr. Ognibene, I haven't said that.  I don't know

         22  what the reason is.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:   You're

         24  testifying before the Council.

         25                 MR. MCELROEN:  Excuse me?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  You're

          3  testifying before the Council and I asked you, do

          4  you believe it is the intention of this bill to

          5  limit safety?

          6                 MR. MCELROEN:  I do not know what the

          7  intention of the bill was, because I was not part of

          8  the drafting of this bill. If I was part of the

          9  drafting of the bill, I would have a full

         10  understanding of what the intention of this bill is,

         11  but that is the reason why I'm here today opposing

         12  it, because I don't have that understanding.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Are you

         14  familiar with the National Electrical Code?

         15                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  And would

         17  you say that the people that drafted it have as much

         18  or equal interest in the safety of the population

         19  they serve as you and your membership?

         20                 MR. MCELROEN:  I'm not sure about

         21  that at all.  The reason why I'm not sure about

         22  that, just if I could sequay as an example, if I may

         23  answer you?  Here in New York State when you pay

         24  prevailing wages on a publicly funded job, you pay

         25  the wage that is in effect at the time the job is
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          2  being done.  And that was negotiated here at a local

          3  level because we had the influence and the ability

          4  in order to have that and raise that discussion in

          5  forums such as this and get the attention of our

          6  representatives to see what our concerns are,

          7  perhaps agree with them, and then pass legislation

          8  in order to do so.

          9                 On the National level, it is

         10  completely different, because it is a different

         11  constituency that is involved.  And so what that

         12  constituency exists of, I'm not sure what their

         13  interest were or what they are at times, and what

         14  the influences are that arrive at consensus for the

         15  purposes of establishing the National Electrical

         16  Code.  So I do not know the answer to that question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  So you do

         18  not know and it may be that they have a less of a

         19  concern about safety, I'm not talking about wages,

         20  I'm talking about safety?

         21                 MR. MCELROEN:  I understand what

         22  you're talking about.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  You would

         24  think, it is your opinion that they may have less of

         25  a concern for safety of their constituency than we
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          2  do in the City of New York?

          3                 MR. MCELROEN:  I think that they may

          4  have less of an understanding of high- density

          5  construction and the problems that are unique to the

          6  City of New York.  You can go to any other large

          7  cities in the United States, none of them are the

          8  big apple, we all know that.

          9                 The problems that exist here in the

         10  City of New York when it comes to construction is

         11  much different than the problems that exists in Los

         12  Angeles or Chicago or Atlanta, even though they do

         13  have high- rise complexes there.  But they do not

         14  have the density of high- rise complexes that we

         15  have here in the City of New York, which poses other

         16  problems that have to be addressed.

         17                 And so the National Electrical Code,

         18  in my belief, does not necessarily take into account

         19  all of those unique aspects that are required here

         20  in the City of New York.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Well,

         22  again, I'm not as familiar as you are, but I do not

         23  see the difference when it comes to electrical

         24  wiring, that I would like to be very safe in a ten

         25  story building or an 80- story building, and it
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          2  seems to me that safety is one thing that is

          3  universal, and I don't know that it has that big of

          4  a variance with, I understand that it has a

          5  difference maybe in a two- family house to an 80-

          6  family, but I don't know it makes a difference from

          7  the Sears Tower to the Empire State Building.

          8                 You know, I understand that is what

          9  you said, but, you know, I tend to believe that the

         10  people that drafted the National Electrical Code

         11  were people, serious people who were not trying to

         12  be flippant, who felt that what they were doing does

         13  provide a substantial degree of safety through all

         14  levels of construction, and they include many of the

         15  things that are difficult for you since you're New

         16  York, not because of safety concerns, but because of

         17  an outdated code.

         18                 That is my sense of it and I know we

         19  can disagree on it.  But I hope that that is the

         20  real concern.  I have a great deal respect for

         21  labor, they're entitled to be paid the absolute fair

         22  wage, the wage of New York City should be higher

         23  than in other parts of the country.  And I

         24  understand it better than anybody, but I get a

         25  sense, and I will tell you that when something comes
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          2  out like this there is a degree of angst that it may

          3  effect the membership, and I understand that.  And

          4  I'm saying, why can't we look at this and you know

          5  and ensure that that does not happen? Maybe there is

          6  an opportunity here to expand the horizons of

          7  memberships of various organizations, electricians

          8  and workers, because it just seems like it is

          9  something that is so good that there is room for us

         10  to reach agreement on rather than for us to

         11  disagree.

         12                 MR. MCELROEN:  Mr. Ognibene, thank

         13  you for your remarks, but I just would like to

         14  clarify one thing, because I got an impression from

         15  them.  The angst that this labor organization has in

         16  its effect to its membership is strictly based on

         17  their safety, not on their work opportunities, not

         18  on increased work opportunities, not on their wages

         19   - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  You're the

         21  one that brought up wage.

         22                 MR. MCELROEN: - -  strictly on

         23  safety.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:   You're the

         25  one that brought up wages.
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          2                 MR. MCELROEN:  I used that as - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  That is why

          4   - -

          5                 MR. MCELROEN:  Mr. Ognibene, I used

          6  that as an example of how local constituencies and

          7  local concerns are able in order to change law and

          8  address the law of local - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Oh, all

         10  right.

         11                 MR. MCELROEN: - -  needs versus on a

         12  National level which has a different plurality, that

         13  is all I used it for, it had nothing to do in any

         14  other way, and I would like to be clear on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Okay.  All

         16  right, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         18  you, Mr. McElroen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Can I just

         20  ask Mr. McElroen a question?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Certainly,

         22  Council member.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  We know

         24  that standards vary from state to state.  And it is

         25  my understanding, my husband is an electrical
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          2  engineer, so is my son, so I have a little

          3  understanding, I don't claim to have a great

          4  understanding, but, for instance, in California they

          5  have earthquakes, everything they do has to be

          6  designed around earthquakes, that is not true for

          7  New York City.

          8                 And there is a National Code and I'm

          9  sure the National Code allows for variances in

         10  states in order to work.  But it would seem to me at

         11  face value that the National Code would be weaker

         12  because it would not include those individual

         13  specifics of those particular states.

         14                 Now here in New York City, I do not

         15  know about the rest of the state, but even in New

         16  York City even with our State specific coding we

         17  find violations that are very serious.  We have, in

         18  fact, in today's paper, even the people who are

         19  hired to do the work are very often people who don't

         20  even have any real knowledge of what to do, and some

         21  of them have lost their lives, quite a few of them

         22  the other day, I think it is four or five, the other

         23  day.

         24                 So that the concern here, and I think

         25  I hear your concern, is that we want to make sure
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          2  that it is safe for New York City.

          3                 MR. MCELROEN:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  And a code

          5  change, I was in the State Legislature for nine

          6  years and I did help to change the Building Code and

          7  I know what it means when you have a code. And I

          8  also know what we're talking about, and we're

          9  talking about enforcement of the code, in fact, that

         10  is the weakest point in our system - -

         11                 MR. MCELROEN:  That is right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: - -  for the

         13  Buildings Department to sit here, they have

         14  overlooked so many things and it is only complaint

         15  driven, we have to be concerned.

         16                 In Queens County we have many, many

         17  projects, you know, on the drawing board ready to

         18  go.  They have to be built safely.

         19                 I mean, I think that your concern is

         20  safety.  Am I incorrect?  How does the National,

         21  well we cannot go into the details between the

         22  National Law and our City Law, but I have seen

         23  certain circumstances, where, I mean, even with our

         24  more specific code, we have problems.

         25                 MR. MCELROEN: Well essentially by
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          2  adopting the National Electrical Code is that you're

          3  adopting the use of certain materials perhaps that

          4  prior to were not permitted to be used here in the

          5  City of New York.

          6                 Now whether or not they would be

          7  used, as was pointed out earlier by Mr. Ognibene, is

          8  a different issue.  They may never be used, but what

          9  it does, is it gives them,  as you pointed out

         10  earlier, the specific right in order to use them

         11  here in the City without review, and that is one of

         12  our major objections because we do not know what the

         13  result of that will.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Council

         18  Member Martin Malave.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN:  Dilan.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Dilan.  Once

         21  removed to his son in the near very future.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN:  Very

         23  soon, very soon. I just have a quick question,

         24  between this version of the bill and the version

         25  that you mentioned that we're not even looking at --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Put you mic on,

          3  Martin, please?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: - -

          5  that we're not even looking at.  Can you, very

          6  succinctly, indicate any differences between the two

          7  bills, any advantages or disadvantages, can you make

          8  a comparison?  If you can or cannot, just - -

          9                 MR. MCELROEN:  As Council Member

         10  Marshall stated earlier when she started speaking,

         11  June of 2000 was a long time ago, and I really could

         12  not do it at this point in time without reviewing it

         13  again.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN:  Okay,

         15  thank you, because I will be looking at that, thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Sir,

         18  thanks very much. Next witness, next, Marolyn

         19  Davenport, Real Estate Board of New York, Ms.

         20  Davenport, would you have a seat?  Identify yourself

         21  and your comments will be appreciated?

         22                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Sure.  I'm sorry, I

         23  don't have a prepared testimony.  I'm Marolyn

         24  Davenport, Senior Vice President, Government Affairs

         25  for the Real Estate Board of New York.  And I am
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          2  here to testify in support of Intro. 741- A.

          3                 We believe it is essential that New

          4  York City update and upgrade its Building Codes.

          5  You know, I was thinking in the 15 years that I have

          6  been with the Real Estate Board of New York there

          7  have been innumerable blue ribbon task forces, code

          8  committees, reports on affordable housing, a charter

          9  commission proposals, all kinds of things that deal

         10  with the issue of construction in New York City,

         11  making it safer, making it more predictable and

         12  making it more up- to- date.  And I cannot think of

         13  a single one that has not said we need to update the

         14  Building Code and bring in the National Codes and

         15  National Standards.

         16                 And this bill before you proposes to

         17  do exactly that.  It is very important in terms of

         18  rebuilding as a result of September 11th.

         19  Certainly, the financial services industries, high-

         20  rise office buildings, they all use electronic and

         21  electrical technology that is, the 1968 code is

         22  simply silent on.  Times have changed entirely.

         23                 But keep in mind that is not the only

         24  reason, go back to the reports that talked about

         25  increasing affordable housing in New York City.
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          2  They too, talk about the importance of adopting

          3  National Standards.

          4                 So I would urge you, I believe that

          5  there is a process in place in this bill.  We

          6  certainly participated in all the code revisions

          7  that went on in terms of the 1990 NEC, we can simply

          8  pick it up at that point, review the differences

          9  between the 1990 and the 1999 standard, which my

         10  experts ensure me are actually not substantial, but

         11  I'm not the expert.  And then come back to you and

         12  have the City come back to you with a bill that is

         13  also a consensus bill.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Ms. Davenport,

         16  I was distracted, just momentarily, but you heard

         17  Mr. McElroen, he says that his concern is safety.

         18  It's not jobs, it's not wages, it's purely safety.

         19  How do you respond to his charge or his concern that

         20  by voting this bill out, 741- A, for the full

         21  Council to look at will somehow undermine or

         22  jeopardize the health and safety of workers and

         23  residents and businesses to our City?

         24                 MS. DAVENPORT:  I think when you're

         25  talking about, particularly the Electrical Code, but
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          2  all aspects of the Building Code, the paramount

          3  issue in every party to this process, whether it is

          4  the trade unions, the contractors, the construction

          5  industry or the development industry, the most

          6  important issue is always safety, and it must be

          7  safety.

          8                 I believe that by adopting a National

          9  Standard, which is understood, remember our

         10  designers and electrical engineers work in many

         11  jurisdictions and many states.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Not only in New

         13  York City.

         14                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Not only in New York

         15  City.  This makes the process understandable,

         16  standardized and predictable. When you have to take

         17  every new technology to someone for permission,

         18  nobody knows the rules.  This codifies the rules,

         19  this is the kind of standardization we need to

         20  increase safety.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well how, do

         22  you have the ability to tell us how National

         23  Standards are arrived at by this, and this is an

         24  unofficial trade association that has determined

         25  that it will decide what the National Standards
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          2  should be, do you have any, are you competent to

          3  explain to us the process by how they reach their

          4  conclusions?

          5                 MS. DAVENPORT:  My understanding, and

          6  I have only been involved at the margins, not on a

          7  committee directly or one in a long time ago, I

          8  guess.  But it is not unlike the same process that

          9  New York City uses for its Building Code and would

         10  use to review the differences between 1990 and 1999

         11  NEC.  You bring together the interested parties, who

         12  are, and in the case of the Electrical Code you

         13  would have the NFPA, the National Fire Protection

         14  Association, which is a leadership organization in

         15  terms of fire safety, you would bring the Electrical

         16  Engineering Community, you would bring electricians,

         17  you bring developers, you would bring all parties,

         18  and this is what New York City does, but this is

         19  certainly what is done broadly on National

         20  Standards.  I don't want to say I know how the NEC

         21  operates directly, because I don't.  And you go

         22  through a consensus process of reviewing every

         23  single aspect of the code, or in this case it would

         24  be an update to the code, until you reach a

         25  consensus on what that should read.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It's reasonable

          3  that there is an assumption that one of their

          4  paramount concerns would have to be safety?

          5                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Absolutely,

          6  absolutely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Any member has

          8  a question  of Ms. Davenport?  Ms. Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Thank

         10  you.  There is one thing, you may not be the person

         11  I should address this to, but you happen to be

         12  sitting in the chair, so you're the lucky one.  It

         13  would seem logical to me, and that is my doom, and

         14  I'm usually logical, that if we have a bill, and

         15  some people are saying this bill is okay, but it

         16  needs amendments, so let's pass it and add the

         17  amendments.  It would seem to me that if we know

         18  what the amendments are, whether they're two, three

         19  or four, how ever many, a hundred, that the

         20  amendments should be put in the bill and then the

         21  bill should be passed.  But is the problem that we

         22  would not know what the amendments would be until

         23  the bill is passed and then we see if it works, it

         24  doesn't work, and then the amendments would follow?

         25                 MS. DAVENPORT:  No, the way the bill
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          2  is written, what I believe has to happen is that the

          3  panels that had been in place to review the 1990

          4  National Electric Code, have to be reconvened, and

          5  they have to look at the difference between 1990 and

          6  1999 and say, are these differences, how do they

          7  relate to New York City and is there anything that

          8  is in the 1999 National Electrical Code that was not

          9  in the 1990 that is different, and what are the

         10  differences, exactly the question that you asked the

         11  previous speaker, what are the differences?  They

         12  have to look at that and they have to evaluate them

         13  for New York, and if there are changes they have to

         14  bring them back to you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  So then

         16  this is the group of folks who have been discussing

         17  this for 11 years or whatever?

         18                 MS. DAVENPORT: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay,

         20  which could mean that this is now 1991 and 1993 we

         21  would have another set, because you said every three

         22  years, or 1992, which is next year, every three

         23  years this - -

         24                 MS. NASSER:  2002.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: - -  2002,
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          2  yes, okay, 2002.  So then that just kind of adds to

          3  the problem because now  -

          4                 MS. DAVENPORT:  This is a problem in

          5  the New York City Building Code that we tend to be a

          6  little bit behind.  This bill, 741- A would be an

          7  important step in updating the code and making it

          8  more current.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Because I

         10  just don't understand why in 11 years, it has taken

         11  11 years for this process to happen and it still

         12  hasn't happen.  Does that make any sense to you?

         13                 It does you, right, thank you.

         14                 MS. DAVENPORT:  The 1990 - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Something

         16  was supposed to come out of this group of people

         17  that have been meeting for 11 years?

         18                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  But has

         20  not happened yet.

         21                 MS. DAVENPORT:  But I think there is,

         22  yes, yes, I think there is a consensus, I think we

         23  were all comfortable with those recommendations.

         24  They are outdated, and we need to look at, there was

         25  a 1993, 1996 and 1999 version, we need to look at
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          2  that quickly, get back to you with any changes there

          3  and move forward.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  So that

          5  is what the amendments would consist of?

          6                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Whatever

          8  these, okay, now I got it, thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, thank

         10  you, Ms. Davenport.  Next is Joseph D'Angelo of the

         11  New York, Joe D'Angelo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Mr.

         13  Chairman, could I just comment?  So basically the

         14  amendments are not in place, it is something that

         15  has to be looked at and reviewed, so the amendments

         16  are not sitting here waiting to be added to the

         17  bill?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It's my

         19  understanding - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: - -  that the

         22  amendments would be voted up or down and the next -

         23   -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO:  It still

         25  would have to be - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: - -  Council.

          3  It wouldn't be this Council, it would be in the next

          4  Council.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Mr.

          6  Speaker, I mean, Mr. Speaker, Mr. Chairman, on the

          7  same question, now the time span that is outlined in

          8  this bill would certainly be beyond the tenure of

          9  this present day Council.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Let me say, so

         11  that we do not get too involved in a colloquy or a

         12  discussion that is not appropriate for this forum.

         13  It is not the intention of the Chair to vote this

         14  bill at this session.  Okay?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It is not our

         17  intention to vote today.  We will reschedule for one

         18  day early next week, either Monday or Tuesday, and

         19  there will be ample opportunities for us as members

         20  of the Committee to receive all of the technical and

         21  expert information that will enable us to make an

         22  intelligent - -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I

         24  understand it is 42 pages, right?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  It's okay,
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          2  you're a quick study.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Well we

          4  need a good briefing on it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  All right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Mr.

          8  D'Angelo.

          9                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And Mr.

         11  Kilgallon, you're together.

         12                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Identify

         14  yourself, please, and speak in any order that you

         15  feel comfortable?

         16                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Okay.  My name is

         17  Joseph D'Angelo, and I'm the Secretary Manager for

         18  the New York City Chapter of the National Electrical

         19  Contractors Association.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  By definition

         21  what does that consist of?

         22                 MR. D'ANGELO:  What that consists of

         23  is we're an association of 250 electrical

         24  contractors that employ 13,000 journeymen

         25  electricians in the City of New York and probably do
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          2  90 percent of the electrical installations in the

          3  City of New York.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr.?

          5                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Mr. Kilgallon is the -

          6   -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. McElroen

          8  said his members, he has 15,000 members, so you

          9  cover most of his members, right?

         10                 MR. D'ANGELO:  We're in the same

         11  association.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  That is Vincent

         13  McElroen.

         14                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Oh, McElroen, Mr.

         15  McElroen, he represents Local #3.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I mean his

         17  workers are in your association?

         18                 MR. D'ANGELO:  We have, my employers

         19  have a collective bargaining agreement with Local

         20  Union #3.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  That is what I

         22  was asking?

         23                 MR. D'ANGELO:  That is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay.

         25                 MR. D'ANGELO:  And Mr. Kilgallon is
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          2  the Governor of the New York City Chapter of the

          3  National Electrical Contractors Association, he is

          4  also a contractor, he employees journeymen

          5  apprentice, journeymen electricians, journey person

          6  electricians and apprentices, and he is also a

          7  member of the New York City Code Committee, New York

          8  City Code and Interpretation Committee.

          9                 We are both, first, Mr. Chairman, I

         10  would like to apologize for not having a prepared

         11  text, only because we found out about this hearing

         12  yesterday morning.  And I regret that I have to

         13  speak against passage of this bill, because in June

         14  of 2000 I appeared before this Committee in support

         15  of what was then 741. What we have today is 741- A,

         16  has no representation to 741.  If someone will look

         17  at them, they will know different, they're

         18  substantially different, dramatically different.

         19                 What we are asking, what we're being

         20  asked to support, if you pass this legislation, is

         21  this bill is, in effect, saying that we're going to

         22  accept the 1999 National Electrical Code, whose

         23  standards are below the New York City, the current

         24  New York City Code.  We're going to accept that 1999

         25  Code and we're going to take 18 months or some
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          2  period of time to implement amendments to it to

          3  bring it up to New York City standards.

          4                 We have done that, we have been doing

          5  that.  We brought, we as the Electrical Contractors

          6  of New York City, were the ones who approached the

          7  City of New York in 1988 and asked the City, urged

          8  the City to update the Electrical Code.  Twenty

          9  panels were convened representing all aspects of the

         10  electrical industry, the contracting industry, the

         11  representatives of the journeymen electricians, the

         12  real estate board was part of that panel, the

         13  consulting engineers, the underwriters lab

         14  Consolidated Edison, every, this whole community

         15  came together and we spent 11 years in developing a

         16  new New York City Code.  That is what came before

         17  you in June of 2000.  And for whatever purpose that

         18  was not passed.

         19                 What we're being asked to do now, is

         20  accept that and then spend the time to reinvent the

         21  wheel, and what we're suggesting is that we have all

         22  of this historical background, the work of

         23  volunteers, thousands and thousands of hours that we

         24  want to improve the Electrical Code in New York

         25  City, we want to make it as it has always been,
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          2  above the standards of the National Electrical Code,

          3  and we think that can be done by just incorporating

          4  those existing changes, updating them because some

          5  period of time has still gone by.

          6                 The City is asking, the

          7  Administration is asking us to trust me.  You know,

          8  we will pass the 1999 Code and trust us that we're

          9  going to make amendments.  That is, I just have a

         10  letter dated December of 1996, which says, I will

         11  just read one sentence, if I may?

         12                  "I want you to know," and this is

         13  addressed to me, "I want you to know that the

         14  approval and implementation of the revised

         15  Electrical Code is one of the Department's top

         16  priorities and that this Administration is committed

         17  to bringing the Code to the City Council in 1997."

         18  That is who, I think that our case is that we

         19  really, we support updating the Code, safety

         20  standards are primary in our industry, we want a

         21  current Code, we want a method of maintaining the

         22  Code on a current basis, but we want to know what

         23  we're supporting for passage.

         24                 We don't want to support something

         25  today to say, well, we're going to take that, in a
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          2  year from now we will know what we have, and if we

          3  don't agree a year from now, what do we do, start

          4  all over?  We put too much time and effort in this

          5  to let this happen.  I think it is incumbent on this

          6  Council to really consider what we're presenting

          7  here today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir?

          9                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Yes, Sir.

         10                 MR. KILGALLON:  I think Mr. D'Angelo

         11  said it all. I'm just really here to help Mr.

         12  D'Angelo with any technical questions that might

         13  come up.  But just to say something again, because

         14  there is some confusion that I'm hearing.  I mean,

         15  everybody in this room agrees that the Code is

         16  outdated.  The Code was outdated 11 years ago, that

         17  is what prompted the whole thing to start.  Safety

         18  is definitely the primary reason that the NEC is in

         19  business, and it is for those reasons that, you

         20  know, we took upon this effort.  Wherever the City

         21  Code is more stringent than the National Code it is

         22  with safety in mind.

         23                 And the question was asked before

         24  what is the difference between what was being asked

         25  to pass in 2002 as is now, the answer is, it's
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          2  unknown, and that is what I'm hearing here, and that

          3  is what I like to hear, I want to know what we're

          4  going to pass, and that is the major difference

          5  between then and now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I think a major

          7  philosophical as well as a practical, political

          8  governmental concern is the September 11th

          9  catastrophic terrorist attack on the World Trade

         10  Center which took the economic guts out of New York

         11  City.

         12                 MR. D'ANGELO:  And this Code, excuse

         13  me, though, Mr. Chairman, this proposal does nothing

         14  that we cannot, you know, to assist that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Other than what

         16  Mr. Topping's statement as to the reduction in the

         17  amount, the substantial reduction in the amount of

         18  fees, which is one aspect of construction.

         19                 MR. D'ANGELO:  But that is not, we're

         20  in favor of that, we're in favor of reduction.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I'm sure you

         22  are.

         23                 MR. D'ANGELO:  Please.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I'm sure you

         25  are.
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          2                 MR. D'ANGELO:  But we - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER;  You're an

          4  employer, you're the guy who pays the fees, you pay

          5  the fees.

          6                 MR. D`ANGELO:  We pay the fees.  We

          7  pay the fees, but we want to rebuild New York City

          8  and we want to rebuild it as efficiently and as

          9  quickly as we can.  We built the City of New York

         10  and we want to rebuild it and we want to be part of

         11  that effort.  But what we have to do, is understand

         12  that passing 741- A is not going to, other than it

         13  is going to save some fee structure here or there,

         14  it's not going into effect for 18 months anyway, the

         15  new Code.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Well this

         17  Committee is very sensitive to the issues raised by

         18  you, the employer, and raised by Local #3, the

         19  employees who work under these or exposed to the

         20  ramifications or the consequences of our action.

         21                 Any member of the Committee?

         22  Governor Ognibene.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  I want to

         24  make a remark. I happen to sit on, the Governor

         25  appointed me to the State Building Code Council, and
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          2  one of, and what they had wanted to do, I think, to

          3  come up outside of New York City, which is excluded,

          4  a uniformed code for the entire state.  A difficult

          5  process, what they decided to do, and I was still in

          6  that process, was what we did was we looked at

          7  various codes and we settled on and we voted on the

          8  International Building Code.  Now we adopted it,

          9  that is what we said it is going to be, it doesn't

         10  mean that it is implemented.            What happens

         11  now is that after we adopt the International

         12  Building Code, depending what industry you

         13  represent, everybody comes before the Council and

         14  they're allowed to present with us what we call more

         15  restrictive standards, and of course, it is up to

         16  them, it's because we have adopted the Code, it's up

         17  to them then to justify why it is necessary.  And we

         18  allow two variations of it, one, you present a

         19  restrictive standard by showing us that it is better

         20  for the entire state and we incorporate it and it

         21  becomes part of our code, or we, in very rare cases,

         22  allow a variance where you show us that while it may

         23  not be applicable to the rest of the State, we

         24  really need a variance in Watertown, or Wasego, or

         25  whatever.  That is very difficult to do because that
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          2  begins to defeat what the process.

          3                 And I kind of look at this bill as

          4  that is what we're trying to do down here, whether

          5  they have done it right, whether they proceeded

          6  correctly, is that they're trying to say look we

          7  want to adopt the National Code and then we want to

          8  bring in the industry and tell us why you think that

          9  it must be more restrictive, maybe 80 percent is

         10  okay and 20 percent has to be more restrictive,

         11  maybe 90, I don't know.  But it seems to me, it

         12  seems a good jumping off point because if you just

         13  start from the beginning and try to adopt a Code,

         14  and I think that is why it has taken 11 years, and

         15  I'm not an expert in it, maybe not and I don't want,

         16  but I'm just telling you that is how we proceeded on

         17  the State and it seems to be working very well, and

         18  it seems to be working out well with the trade

         19  unions, with those organizations and associations

         20  that represent businesses and with the local

         21  governments.

         22                 And a comment, and if you could tell

         23  why you don't think that that is a good idea to

         24  proceed that way, I have no problem with it, but I

         25  want to get, I'm trying to get clarification.
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          2                 MR. D`ANGELO:  If I may?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Yes.

          4                 MR. D`ANGELO:  I think it is a good

          5  idea, I think it is what we have done.  We started

          6  in 1988 to integrate the New York City Code along

          7  with the National Electrical Code.  The technical

          8  aspects of that Code, of doing that job, this letter

          9  indicate was written in 1996, the technical aspects

         10  of doing exactly what you say, was completed maybe

         11  in 1994 and 1995, and then it died in the Department

         12  of Buildings for some other reason, it had nothing

         13  to do with the technical aspects.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Right.

         15                 MR. D`ANGELO: We should of done this,

         16  this should have been in place seven, eight years

         17  ago.  We did that.

         18                 And with respect to your comments on

         19  the New York State, the uniformed Building Code, we

         20  have been trying to get a copy of that Electrical

         21  part of that New York State Uniformed Building Code,

         22  and I don't believe it exists.  I think that - -

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  I will get

         24  your card and make sure you get it.

         25                 MR. D`ANGELO:  Gladly, gladly, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay,

          5  gentlemen, thank you very much.  Now we have

          6  testimony from Mr. Serge Budzyn, Lilker Associates.

          7                 MR. BUDZYN:  Good afternoon.  I have

          8  to apologize too, for not having a prepared

          9  statement, I only found out about this meeting this

         10  morning.

         11                 My name is Serge Budzyn.  I'm a

         12  principal a Lilker Associates Consulting Engineers.

         13  We're located in Manhattan, and I'm representing the

         14  New York Association of Consulting Engineers. It's a

         15  business association which represents independent

         16  consulting engineers throughout New York State.  The

         17  New York City Metropolitan Region alone is

         18  constituted of 100 firms with over 10,0000 engineers

         19  and technical staff providing engineering design

         20  service for most New York City projects both public

         21  and private, as well as numerous projects worldwide.

         22                 We believe that Intro. 741- A is a

         23  critical bill whose passage will greatly assist New

         24  York City in its reconstruction efforts and beyond.

         25  The construction industry and electrical
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          2  installations, in particular, are dependent on

          3  clear, concise standards, requirements and

          4  procedures.  The absence of such guidelines

          5  translates into confusing design, costly excess

          6  planning and wasted time for the design professions

          7  with consequent delays and cost excesses for the

          8  construction industry.

          9                 Intro. 741 will correct this by using

         10  nationally accepted standards, which are regularly

         11  updated.  Appropriate elements can then be selected

         12  for New York City to follow by the amendment

         13  process.  Our current electrical code has not seen

         14  significant update in more than 30 years, and even

         15  then the changes were limited.

         16                 We have heard from prior speakers

         17  about the current technologies that are not

         18  recognized in the old Code Book.  So I wish to

         19  reiterate that our organization stands ready to

         20  assist and take a proactive role in any advisory

         21  committees that would be formed to draft the

         22  requirement amendments to the NEC.

         23                 I would also like to say that in my

         24  daily, I am an electrical engineer and I use both

         25  the City Electrical Code and the National Electrical
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          2  Code.  I work on projects both within New York City

          3  and outside New York City, and on numerous projects

          4  I'm asked to design to the more stringent of the

          5  two, which means that I do have to do some

          6  comparison between both books.  I do feel that the

          7  National Electrical Code is very much concerned with

          8  safety and is of the highest standards as far as

          9  safety goes.  I know that the National Code

         10  recognizes some wiring methods, materials and other

         11  equipment that may be considered by some not to be

         12  acceptable in New York City for various reasons.

         13  But those types of material and equipment and

         14  systems can be ruled out from use by an appropriate

         15  amendment.

         16                 In order to, I would like to look

         17  back at the original 1990 rewrite and maybe try to

         18  clarify why the present proposal is a little more

         19  desirable from our point of view.  If we adopt the

         20  1990 rewrite, we're getting an 11- year- old code.

         21  So we're replacing a 33- year- old code with an 11-

         22  year- old code, and by the time it becomes law, it

         23  will probably be a 13- year- old code. The rewrite,

         24  as I understand it, took exact sections from the NEC

         25  and rewrote those sections to suit New York City
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          2  requirements.  So in many cases the specific

          3  sections and subparagraph numbering is completely

          4  different.  That means that the next time there is a

          5  rewrite of the National Code it becomes a very

          6  tedious process to capture any changes to various

          7  section in the subsequent rewrites.               I

          8  believe that by adopting the NEC, the current

          9  version of the NEC as it stands, and then modifying

         10  the amendments on a three- year basis, I think the

         11  public is much better served.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Mr. Budzyn, you

         13  heard the representative of Local #3 talked about

         14  safety issue, if we proceed with 741- A, and he uses

         15  references some rather catastrophic events in recent

         16  history of our City.  Is this a fair assumption?  Is

         17  this reasonable?  How do you respond to the safety

         18  concerns?

         19                 MR. BUDZYN:  I'm very much concerned

         20  about safety. I actually feel that the NEC has a

         21  more thorough overview of safety concerns than the

         22  present New York City Electrical Code.  In fact, any

         23  time there are specific questions that come up

         24  before the Advisory Board or the Code

         25  Interpretations Committee, it's, they often refer to
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          2  the NEC to see what the right approach might be to

          3  solve the problem.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You also heard

          5  reference made to a Committee that worked for 10

          6  years, were you a part of that Committee or was your

          7  constituency a part of that Committee?

          8                 MR. BUDZYN:  Our constituency was

          9  very much a part of that Committee.  I personally

         10  was not, but I am presently Chairing the Committee

         11  that was involved in this, I am the Chair of the

         12  Electrical Codes Committee for the NYACE at this

         13  time.  And I'm very much aware of the enormous

         14  effort that our members put into that rewrite.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  So how do you

         16  respond to the complaint that all of this, thousands

         17  of work hours are being disregarded to the detriment

         18  to the people of the City of New York?

         19                 MR. BUDZYN:  We have discussed this

         20  at our Committee meetings and with the membership at

         21  large.  The consensus is that most of that work will

         22  not have been lost, the database still exists, the

         23  rewrite exists, the intent would be to use that

         24  amended code as a basis for formulating the

         25  amendments to the, in this case, the 1999 NEC.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Thank you.

          3  Okay.  Ms. Marshall.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes.

          5  Wouldn't it be just as wise to incorporate those

          6  right now?  I mean if we're talking about three

          7  months to incorporate them, update them, why can't

          8  we do that?

          9                 MR. BUDZYN:  I think the reason is

         10  that we need to be able to have a process in place

         11  so that this can happen periodically without having

         12  to go and get a bill passed each time.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  But that is

         14  exactly what you're going to do, if you going to

         15  have to keep backing for amendments; no?

         16                 MR. BUDZYN:  I'm not sure of the

         17  exact process of how of the amendments will be

         18  proposed, but I know it is  - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  It will

         20  have to come before this Committee, it will not be

         21  us, but it will be the next Council, you have to

         22  become before the Housing and Buildings Committee.

         23                 MR. BUDZYN:  That is true.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  If we can

         25  up, it seems to me that what we're attempting to do
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          2  here that should be happening here is to update the

          3  legislation, update the Code so that it is at its

          4  maximum with the state- of- the- art and also in

          5  consistent with safety, at this time.  I believe

          6  that that is what everyone's goal is here.

          7                 MR. BUDZYN:  And I agree with you,

          8  and I believe we're best served by actually doing

          9  that, taking the latest, well the 1999 Code in this

         10  case, making the necessary amendments and getting

         11  that out as quickly as possible.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  But

         13  basically that is not what we're being asked to do

         14  today.  Am I correct?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  We're asked,

         16  we're taking up this bill to either, we have three

         17  courses of actions, to either vote it up, vote it

         18  down, or lay it over for the next meeting, which I

         19  think the Chair thinks that is probably the

         20  advisable course at this time which will give you

         21  and the Chair as well as other members an

         22  opportunity to pursue any questions or concerns in

         23  great details without taking up the time of the

         24  Committee.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I agree
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          2  with you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Yes, Council

          4  Member Warden from the Bronx.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  Thank you

          6  very much.  This maybe can clear up some of the

          7  confusion in my head.  Are you representing that the

          8  National Code is equal to, superior than, or worse

          9  than the present Code that would be in effect if we

         10  did nothing?

         11                 MR. BUDZYN:  I think it is superior

         12  to the present code that would be in effect if we

         13  did nothing.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  Okay.  Now if

         15  we were to pass this bill in its present form than

         16  you're saying we're upgrading to the National Code

         17  until such time as the amendments that have been

         18  floating around for the past 11 years could be

         19  submitted and go through the approval process; is

         20  that how you envision it?

         21                 MR. BUDZYN:  My understanding is that

         22  the 1999 National Electrical Code would not just

         23  simply become an interim code awaiting the

         24  amendments.  I think it will only become code when

         25  the amendments were already approved and in place.
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          2  So we would have a period - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  So this the

          4  Code, the antiquated code would still be in effect

          5  during that time?

          6                 MR. BUDZYN:  I think until, what is

          7  it, 2003 we're saying, January 2003, I believe.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  Okay, thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, Mr.

         11  Budzyn, thanks for your testimony.

         12                 MR. BUDZYN:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  And we will be

         14  in touch, and Mr. Andrew Nowotny, and Mr. Sal

         15  Anelli.  If you gentlemen would introduce yourselves

         16  and this is the Association of Electrical

         17  Contractors, and speak in any order that you feel

         18  comfortable with?

         19                 MR. NOTWOTNY:  My name is Andrew

         20  Nowotny with the Association of Electrical

         21  Contractors.  We also have a collective bargaining

         22  agreement with Local #3.  And I must say, we were in

         23  Washington, D.C. Last week celebrating the 100th

         24  Anniversary of the National Association, and while

         25  we were away we get a call from the Mayor's Office
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          2  that there is going to be something coming down the

          3  pike and the possible meetings will be held.  But I

          4  must say I'm proud to say that the National

          5  Association did not cancel their convention, and

          6  with everything being closed and Congress out of

          7  session, we were still able to fill five hotels and

          8  support the Washington, D.C. Economy and fulfill our

          9  convention.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  I'm sorry you

         11  didn't have it here and support New York City

         12  economy.

         13                 MR. NOTWOTNY:  We do that also,

         14  believe me.  But anyway, so then we find out that

         15  this new bill is coming into effect.  As of

         16  yesterday, we never even received a copy of the new

         17  version A, and in my mind, too much is still

         18  unknown, too much is still vague, and it is much too

         19  open ended.

         20                 And I'm sure the Council is not in

         21  the habit of signing, you know, a blank checks.  And

         22  in our opinion, we feel this is what this bill is

         23  asking us to do concerning our business and our

         24  industry.

         25                 And as Mr. Topping said earlier,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  there is no defined result of this bill.  We're not

          3  in Arizona, we're not in Nevada, or we're not

          4  Colorado, but we are New York City.  We do agree to

          5  improve this New York City Code, but we request to

          6  do so carefully, but we do need more time to put

          7  things together to reach consensus, and at this

          8  point we feel that there is no consensus.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Sir.

         10                 MR. ANELLI:  My name Sal Anelli.  I'm

         11  Codes and Standards Chairman for the Association of

         12  Electrical Contractors. I'm also a contractor.  I

         13  have been involved with this process of the new code

         14  for a good many years, somewhere in the area of

         15  eight years.  I was also involved in the

         16  spearheading the anti- self certification movement,

         17  which we were able to overcome by the Administration

         18  because we felt that safety was of the utmost

         19  importance.

         20                 At the same time, I apologize for not

         21  having, I just wrote a couple of notes, because I

         22  was just yesterday contacted about this.  I,

         23  unfortunately, I am very much in wanting to get a

         24  new code in New York City, but I'm very much opposed

         25  to this 741- A.
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          2                 Intro. 741- A has been thrust upon us

          3  and it is basically asking us to approve a code and

          4  wait 18 months to complete the enactment of that

          5  code, which to me it seems that if you wait three to

          6  six months for us to go over all the changes and

          7  supply you with that full finished code then, you

          8  would have a code, a viable code in three to six

          9  months.

         10                 I'm very much opposed to the way this

         11  has been pushed down.  We are contractors, I

         12  represent in my association, which is part of, we

         13  have a bargaining agreement with Local #3, and we

         14  represent approximately five to six thousand

         15  employees, and if this code was to provide a savings

         16  in my expenses, I would probably want you to approve

         17  it.

         18                 This, our main concern is safety, our

         19  main concern with this is that we're very concerned

         20  with New York City electrical safety.  People may

         21  not agree, people may agree, but I have always

         22  believed that this is probably one of the safest

         23  city electrically in the whole United States.

         24                 On June 7th of 2000 we wholeheartedly

         25  approved of what was brought before you, which was a
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          2  culmination of 10 years of work by a lot of people

          3  and a lot of hours, and that was the 1990 Code and

          4  its modifications.  All that work should not go in

          5  vain, we should take all of the history of that and

          6  put into the 1999 NEC and then give you the full

          7  Code for your approval.

          8                 I would also like to tell you that I

          9  am also a licensed electrical contractor in New

         10  Jersey.  I don't do too much work in New Jersey, but

         11  I do some work in New Jersey, and I know the

         12  difference between the NEC and the superior

         13  standards of the New York City Electrical Code.  And

         14  I also know the difference that in New York City you

         15  do need the superior standards, its a different

         16  animal, New York City, the concentrated amount of

         17  buildings could not accept the loose regulations of

         18  the NEC.

         19                 Now mind you, having said that, I

         20  will also tell you that the NEC is much more

         21  stringent on other items, but other items like farms

         22  and large vast complexes that do not really happen

         23  in New York City.  So having said that, I would

         24  think that if we take the best of the NEC and take

         25  the best of New York City Code, I think we would
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          2  have the safety that we're all looking for.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Any questions?

          5  All right, I thank both of you gentlemen for your

          6  time and your testimony.  And there being no other

          7  witnesses scheduled at this time, Mr. Toppings, do

          8  you want to, Mr. Marzio Penzi, do you want to give

          9  us some rebuttal and response to some of the

         10  concerns that were raised?

         11                 I want to announce that the time of

         12  our next meeting of this Committee will be Tuesday,

         13  October the 30th at 10:00 a.m. In the same room.

         14                 Sir, if you will identify yourself

         15  again, because this is a recorded record, not a

         16  stenographic?

         17                 MR. TOPPING:  Mark Topping, Chief of

         18  Staff of the Department of Buildings.

         19                 MR. PENZI:  Marzio Penzi, Director of

         20  the Bureau of Electrical Control.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  You may

         22  proceed.

         23                 MR. TOPPING:  Thank you.  Thank you

         24  for the opportunity to respond to some of the

         25  comments made.  I wanted to bring up a couple of
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          2  points in response, one, which was a theme that was

          3  brought up a number of times was that this bill is

          4  an effort to throw out the years of work that had

          5  preceded this, and in fact, that is not at all the

          6  case, indeed, it builds upon that work in that

          7  we're, it allows us to use it to modify the 1999

          8  Code in a way to further update the Code to be up to

          9  date as possible.

         10                 I also wanted to address the safety

         11  and enforcement issue, there are a number of areas

         12  that the current New York City Code is silent on,

         13  and in terms of these new technologies, and

         14  incorporating into the new Code would be to address

         15  the parameters in which these installations could be

         16  done, and that in and of itself is a major safety

         17  advantage as to where we are now.

         18                 There are also a number of

         19  enforcement mechanisms that are in the

         20  Administrative portions of this code, higher

         21  penalties, stronger actions that can be taken

         22  against people who are not following the law, so

         23  that is an important part of this.

         24                 And then I also wanted to make sure

         25  that it was made clear that this is a process for
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          2  gaining the input of the industry and constituents

          3  during the 10- month review process.  It's just one

          4  analogy is that if you think back to 1990 and the

          5  computers and technologies that we had on our desks

          6  in 1990, I think that we would recognize that there

          7  has been a lot of advancements in technology that

          8  need to be incorporated and it may take as many as

          9  three to six months to review the 741 amendments to

         10  update them to standards that are now in effect.

         11                 And finally, I just wanted to point

         12  out that there are some serious problems or issues

         13  that have been brought up with Intro. 741 that make

         14  that not such the viable bill that it was in June

         15  2000 that we need to consider carefully.  If we want

         16  to move forward to a new electrical code, 741- A is

         17  our opportunity to do that and to allow us to build

         18  the buildings and the modern buildings that are

         19  needed to redevelop and rebuild New York.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Again, respond

         21  to the theme of those in opposition, we threw out

         22  the hundreds of thousands of hours that has already

         23  been done, all this would be lost, would you clearly

         24  explain how the opportunity of this work not being

         25  lost and incorporated in the ultimate version and
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          2  reasons why we cannot, or reasons why it should be

          3  moved, 741 should be moved as opposed to being

          4  delayed?

          5                 MR. TOPPING:  As Mr. McElroen stated,

          6  it would take, using the work of the prior committee

          7  it would take about three to six months to update

          8  the 1999 NEC Code.  The reason why that would take

          9  three to six months and not nine to, or six to nine

         10  years as the previous effort is because we are

         11  building off of that effort. In addition the 10-

         12  month Committee review process that we have provides

         13  the opportunity to review what are the differences

         14  between 1990 and 1999, what are the areas that we

         15  need to address again in order to ensure that the

         16  adopted 1999 NEC Code, the adopted New York City

         17  specific code meets the unique requirements of the

         18  City in its dense environment.

         19                 MR. PENZI:  Yes, may I add that the

         20  prior, the technical standard that based on the 1990

         21  Code that those that testified in opposition to this

         22  bill have talked about, their assessment that it

         23  would take three to six months to update those

         24  technical standards to the existing, to update the

         25  standards of today is a very conservative standard
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          2  when you can take into consideration in order to do

          3  that accurately and properly they would have to be

          4  literally three revisions, three NEC Codes that

          5  would have to be reviewed in order to do that.  I

          6  think their estimation that that could be done in

          7  three to six months is a very conservative

          8  estimation.  When in comparison we're talking about

          9  benchmarking, using the 1999 Code as the benchmark

         10  for and basically coming up with amendments to that

         11  much higher standard and much more up- to- date

         12  standard.  That is a significant difference between

         13  using this technical, the technical standard in 741-

         14  A and using the prior standard.

         15                 There is a catch up process that was

         16  necessary when this bill was originally introduced

         17  as 741, and that was catching up from, that was

         18  bringing, that was catching up from a 1990 point.

         19  Now we're talking about using the 1999 and just

         20  looking at it for the density issues that are unique

         21  to this City.  This is a vast of difference in terms

         22  of the amount of effort and time and ability between

         23  accomplishing those tasks in the time frame that

         24  we're talking about here.

         25                 So I very much disagree that with the
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          2  claims by Mr. McElroen that that could be done in

          3  three to six months.  It took them 12 years to

          4  review one version, which was based on just the

          5  1990, yet in three to six months we could review

          6  three versions of the NEC, that I don't think is

          7  possible.  However, at the same time, we can use

          8  what they have done as a benchmark towards moving

          9  forward and expediting the process of coming up with

         10  the amendments based on that we need to, if this

         11  bill is passed, that would be obligated to present

         12  to the Council in one year from now.  We could use

         13  that as a footing to do that in an expedited

         14  fashion.

         15                 I would also like to comment toward,

         16  regarding the safety concerns that have been stated.

         17    Having clear technical standards only improves

         18  safety.  It clarifies, it improves the clarity and

         19  completeness of what needs to be done.  In addition,

         20  the enforcement additions and characteristics that

         21  are involved with this Administrative bill, in the

         22  Administrative Section of this Code will vastly

         23  improve the Department's ability to ensure

         24  unlicensed activity rather to prevent unlicensed

         25  activity in the City.
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          2                 So this bill goes a long way towards

          3  improving safety in this industry.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  One of our

          5  analyst, Barbara Turkowitz has a question.

          6                 MS. TURKOWITZ:  I guess the other

          7  question is, how do you, what is the advantage to

          8  moving this at this point as opposed to waiting and

          9  moving the entire thing as the advocates you have

         10  heard this morning have suggested, when we have all

         11  of that work done and move it as a whole package?

         12                 MR. PENZI:  The effective date, if we

         13  move it forward now the effective date of being able

         14  to use, utilize the benefits of the technical

         15  standards would occur sooner.  And I would think

         16  that given the building conditions and priorities

         17  that this City is faced with now, the best interest

         18  of the City would be to have the utilization of

         19  these better, improved standards sooner than later.

         20                 If we move later then there is an

         21  implementation period, there is a process, it is

         22  pushing everything down further away, and what that

         23  will do, is just delay the entire benefit of this

         24  Code.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Council Member
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          2  Warden.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  Let me just

          4  give a follow- up because the implementation dates

          5  can be changed by a stroke of a pen.  We have done

          6  legislation that has been in effect immediately. The

          7  question here, again, is if we move the entire

          8  package and did not require an 18- month, or nine-

          9  month, or six- month implementation date, but a 30-

         10  day, where does Barbara's question then come in?

         11                 MR. PENZI:  I'm not sure I

         12  understand.

         13                 MR. TOPPING: I think, let me address

         14  your question, I think that one of the powerful

         15  points of moving forward with this now is that 741-

         16  A really institutionalizes a process for continuous

         17  review and updating of the electrical code.  I think

         18  we will continue to look at the code through 741- A

         19  as each new NEC standard comes out, we will look at

         20  that.  So if we decide in September of 2002 that the

         21  efforts and the amendments were not, are not

         22  sufficient, then the 2002 publication of the NEC

         23  gives us another opportunity to look at that and

         24  update that process.

         25                 So it's really, it's a powerful
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          2  process in terms of institutionalizing and making

          3  sure that our code continues to be updated and

          4  continues to incorporate the changing technology and

          5  the evolving safety standards, and I think that it

          6  gives, adopting it now gives us the confidence that

          7  we know the road that we're going forward on and we

          8  can move forward with making those changes now and

          9  have the most up- to- date code and give the

         10  development community the confidence that we're

         11  moving towards that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Okay, there

         14  being no further testimony or witnesses, the Chair

         15  remains available to anyone who has a point of view

         16  or information that you want or you think that would

         17  be helpful to me in understanding and making a

         18  responsible vote.

         19                 That being said, this meeting is

         20  recessed now, and will be reconvened on Tuesday the

         21  30th of October at 10:00 a.m.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 1:10 p.m.)

         23

         24

         25
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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